
IN THE UNITED STATES DISTRICT COURT 
FOR THE NORTHERN DISTRICT OF ALABAMA 

MIDDLE DIVISION 
 

 ) 
 ) 

WENDELL F. GILLEY, as an  ) 
individual an representative,   ) 
      ) 
   Plaintiff(s)  ) 
      ) CIVIL ACTION NO. 

v.    ) 
      ) CV-04- CLS-0562-M 
MONSANTO COMPANY, INC.,  ) 
et. al.      ) 
   Defendants.  ) 
      ) 
 

PLAINTIFF’S MOTION TO STRIKE  
DEFENDANTS’ MOTION FOR ATTORNEYS’ FEES 

AND  
PLAINTIFF’S CROSS MOTION FOR ATTORNEY FEES 

PURSUANT TO 28 U.S.C. § 1927 AND FOR SANCTIONS UNDER 
RULE 11 

 
Plaintiff hereby moves to strike Defendants’ motion for attorneys’ 

fees and cross moves this Court for attorney fees and costs pursuant to 28 

U.S.C. § 1927 and for sanctions under Rule 11.  As grounds for said motion 

Plaintiff states as follows:   

The Supreme Court recognized nearly a century ago the relationship 

of a Trustee to the cestui que trust is much more than a contractual 

relationship.  Brown v. Fletcher, 235 U.S. 589 (1915).  The rights of the 

beneficiary of a trust to his property are defined by the terms creating the 
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trust and the duty which the law imposes upon the Trustee because of the 

fiduciary position.  Id. at 594.  “The beneficiary here had an interest in and 

to the property that was more than a bare right and much more than a chose 

in action. For he had an admitted and recognized fixed right to the present 

enjoyment of the estate with a right to the corpus itself when he reached the 

age of fifty-five.” Id.  A proceeding by the beneficiary to enforce his rights 

in and to the property held in trust against a Trustee is not a suit based in 

contract even if the property held in trust was derived from a vested right in 

a contract.  Id.   

The Trustee in question here, “Old” Monsanto a/k/a Pharmacia, held 

property in trust for the benefit of the cestui que trust “Old” Monsanto’s 

highly paid executives and its former workers. Doc 209-211 Exhs. A-H. 

“Old” Monsanto’s executives ignored ERISA in total using its defined 

benefit pension plan as a tax shelter for decades.  To relieve itself of liability 

“Old” Monsanto aided by counsel designed a shell game based on fabricated 

evidence and perjured testimony to establish precedent in the instant action 

under discretionary review to “take” its former workers’ pensions through 

fraud and deceit.  Id.  
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FACTS 

1. Defendants elected to pursue litigation rather than provide Plaintiff 
an administrative remedy.  

  
2. Defendants aided by counsel submitted fabricated evidence and 

false testimony misrepresenting “New” Monsanto as the 
responsible successor entity of “Old” Monsanto’s defined benefit 
plan instead of the legally responsible party, Pharmacia f/k/a “Old” 
Monsanto.1 

 
3. Defense counsel on behalf of Defendants stipulated Plaintiff was 

VESTED if he had 1000 hours of service in 1972. 
 
4. Defendants and defense counsel knew there were no records 

because Solutia was in the process of shredding all the records 
located during discovery.  Heptinstall Doc. 28, 29, 33, 36.  

                                                 
1ERISA forbids assignment or alienation of pension benefits.  29 U.S.C. § 
1056(d)(1);  Riordan v. Commonwealth Edison Co., 128 F.3d 549, 552 (7th 
Cir. 1997); Plumb v. Fluid Pump Service, Inc., 124 F.3d 849, 863 (7th Cir. 
1997).  Notwithstanding, Pharmacia assigned legacy liability for vested 
pension benefits belonging to its former chemical workers to Solutia.  Doc 
209-211 Exhs. A-H.  Defendants here, Pharmacia, the legally responsible 
party and “New” Monsanto, Solutia’s guarantor, represented “New” 
Monsanto assumed the Monsanto Salaried Employees’ Pension Plan, a 
defined benefit plan maintained by “Old” Monsanto to disguise this action in 
equity as a discretionary claim for a benefit. Id.  Mr. Buettner testified 
regarding Plaintiff’s pension as if he worked for the legally responsible party 
when in fact he was an employee of “New” Monsanto.  Gilley I at R 101 Vol 
2 a p. 258.  Moreover, affidavits and testimony were presented to the Court 
regarding the lack of pay records when Solutia was in the process of 
shredding evidence.  Gilley I Declaration Brian Buettner at Doc 64-2; Doc 
101 Vol I and Vol II; Heptinstall at R 28, 29, 33 and 36; but see Braden v. 
Wal-Mart Stores, Inc., 588 F.3d 585 (November 25, 2009)(a fiduciary has a 
duty to disclose).  This court based on defense counsel’s representation that 
Solutia was a separate party not before the court over whom they had no 
control denied Plaintiffs’ motion to enjoin the shredding of evidence when 
defense counsel represented Solutia. Doc 209-211 Exhs. A-H. 
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5. Plaintiff’s counsel submitted Social Security Records and a 

permissible equivalency which credited overtime to prove Plaintiff 
was VESTED. 

 
6. Defendants breached the stipulation and appealed misrepresenting 

the facts and concealing the fraudulent scheme to establish 
precedent.  
 

7. Pharmacia, “New” Monsanto and Solutia now rely on precedent 
established in the above styled case prospectively to “take” all 
“Old” Monsanto’s former workers’ vested pension benefits.   

 
8. Defendants denied Plaintiff his vested pension benefit as part of a 

fraudulent scheme perpetrated by Pharmacia, “New” Monsanto 
and Solutia to “take” all “Old” Monsanto’s former workers’ vested 
pension benefits for the benefit of the Trustee. 

 
9. Plaintiff has proven the benefit decision here was the result of a 

conflict of interest, the Defendants as fiduciaries and co-fiduciaries 
breached their duty to former employees who were participants, 
and Pharmacia made a complete end run around the law using the 
courts in its fraudulent scheme. 

 
10.  Plaintiff has proven that ERISA is unconstitutional because it       

permits a private party to usurp the court’s equitable jurisdiction in 
its own self-interest. 

  
Doc 209-211 Exhs. A-H. 
   

The decision in Gilley I and II would have been different “but for” 

Defendants’ fraud.  If Pharmacia, “New” Monsanto, and Solutia had been 

forthcoming Plaintiff and all other former workers of “Old” Monsanto 

would no longer be litigating to recover their property.  Defendants’ 

erroneously state that “none of the grounds on which his motion rests is 
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new” however this again is simply not true.  While Plaintiff has presented 

evidence of Defendants’ wrongdoing to the court this court has never 

considered the evidence.  In Gilley I evidence was not considered because 

Defendants stipulated Plaintiff was VESTED if he proved his hours of 

service.  Gilley I Doc 77-81; Doc 101 at pp. 1-12.  The stipulation was 

breached after Plaintiff proved entitlement and Defendants appealed 

presenting erroneous facts to the Court of Appeals to establish precedent.  

Gilley et al. v. Monsanto Company, Inc., 490 F.3d 848 (11th Cir. 2007).2  

On remand the court dismissed sua sponte all remaining claims for lack of 

standing without considering the merits of Plaintiff’s motion for summary 

judgment based on the law of the case doctrine.  Doc 194.  The Eleventh 

affirmed.  Plaintiff’s counsel submitted evidence of the fraudulent scheme to 

defraud “Old” Monsanto’s workers of their property, their pensions, in the 

independent Heptinstall action challenging this final judgment, but the court 

dismissed under Rule 12 without considering the evidence declaring Gilley I 

and II was clear stare decisis grounds for failure to state a claim.  Heptinstall 

Doc 119; see also fn 3.     

                                                 
2 Plaintiff has proven the benefit decision here was the result of a conflict of 
interest, the Defendants as fiduciaries and co-fiduciaries breached their duty 
to former employees who were participants, and Pharmacia made a complete 
end run around the law using the courts in its fraudulent scheme to take its 
former workers’ pensions. 
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Since the filing of Plaintiff’s second writ of certiorari the Ninth, 

Third, Sixth, and Eighth Circuits have found former employees wrongfully 

denied their benefits as a result of a fiduciaries’ breach of duty and violation 

of ERISA have a cause of action under 29 U.S.C. §§ 1132(a)(2) and (3) for 

benefits and the standard of review is de novo.  See Republished Opinion in 

Poore v. Simpson Paper Co., 566 F.3d 922 (9th Cir. May 21, 2009); Vaughn 

v. Bay Envir. Mgt., Inc., 567 F.3d 1021 (9th Cir. June 4, 2009); Harris v. 

Amgen, Inc. et al., 573 F.3d 728 (9th Cir. July 14, 2009); In re: Unisys Corp. 

Retiree Med. Benefits ERISA Litig. v. Unisys Corp. 579 F.3d 220 (3rd Cir. 

September 2, 2009); Schreiber v. Philips Display Comp. Co., 580 F.3d 355 

(6th Cir. September 2, 2009);  Braden v. Wal-Mart Stores, Inc., 588 F.3d 

585 (November 25, 2009).   

The fraud and deception instigated by executives of Pharmacia, 

“New” Monsanto, and Solutia aided by officers of the court is of the species 

that tears at the fabric of our democracy, fraud on the court, because it 

deprives parties both before and not before the court of their constitutional 

right to redress the wrongful “taking” of their property by a court instead of 

by biased decisionmakers, executives of Pharmacia, “New” Monsanto and 

Solutia, in their own self-interest.  Id.  A judgment perpetrated by fraud 

which denies a party of due process resulting in the unconstitutional “taking” 
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of his property without redress by a court is void.  Simon v. Southern 

Railway Co., 236 U.S. 115 (1914).  A Rule 60 motion is particularly 

appropriate where Defendants intend to use the final judgment prospectively 

as grounds for denying others their constitutional right to redress and due 

process.  

Defendants in their response to Plaintiff’s Rule 60 motion describe 

with clarity that their scheme perpetrated to “take” vested pension benefits 

from “Old” Monsanto’s former workers rises to the level of fraud on the 

court and not just fraud inter party.   As Defendants explained: 

“Fraud on the court” under Rule 60(d)(3) consists of “only the 
most egregious misconduct,” such as “bribery of a judge or 
members of a jury, or the fabrication of evidence by a party in 
which an attorney is implicated.” Rozier v. Ford Motor Co., 
573 F.2d 1332, 1338 (5th Cir. 1978) (citing Hazel-Atlas Glass 
Co. v. Hartford-Empire Co., 322 U.S. 238, 244 (U.S. 1944)); 
see also Travelers Indem., 761 F.2d at 1551 (explaining that 
“‘[f]raud upon the court’ should . . . embrace only that species 
of fraud which does or attempts to, defile the court itself, or is a 
fraud perpetrated by officers of the court so that the judicial 
machinery cannot perform in the usual manner its impartial task 
of adjudging cases that are presented for adjudication, and relief 
should be denied in the absence of such conduct.”). . . The 
proponent of the motion must “‘show an unconscionable plan 
or scheme which is designed to improperly influence the court 
in its decision.’” Rozier, 573 F.2d at 1338 (quoting England v. 
Doyle, 281 F.2d 304, 309 (9th Cir. 1960)). 
 

Doc 212 at p. 8. 
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Defendants’ plan or scheme was “unconscionable” because it was an 

intentional scheme to “take” someone else’s property, and it was designed to 

intentionally and improperly influence the court in its decision.  See Gilley I 

and II; Heptinstall at Doc 28, 29, 33 and 36.  The fraud committed by 

Defendants and aided by counsel is not just inter party fraud that can be left 

to an independent action, the Heptinstall action, because Defendants are 

relying prospectively on the final judgment here to “take” all former 

employees’ vested pension benefits.  Doc 209-211 Exh. A-H.  Defendants in 

for a penny are in for a pound.  Defendants have nothing to lose and 

everything to gain from continuing to apply pressure to ensure a successful 

outcome to their scheme to steal former workers pension.  This is hardly 

equity.   

Fraud is egregious conduct any time, but when it interferes with the 

substantive rights of parties and the judicial process, it rises to the level of 

fraud on the court.  When there has been fraud in an equitable action to 

recover property wrongfully detained it is especially egregious.  When there 

is fraud to “take” property from a party before the court to establish a basis 

for “taking” property from parties not before the court it is of the species the 

courts heretofore have labeled fraud on the court.  Viewed in this light the 

scheme undertaken by Defendants is unconscionable.   

 8

Case 4:04-cv-00562-CLS-HGD   Document 214    Filed 02/15/10   Page 8 of 13



Defendants’ latest unsubstantiated motion for sanctions against 

Plaintiff’s counsel who has protected the constitutional rights of parties 

never before the court based on principle and respect for the law is beyond 

unconscionable.  Defendants filing of a barebones motion pursuant to 28 

U.S.C. § 1927 on the eve of oral argument in the independent action is 

intolerable.  The right at stake is the constitutional right to redress by a court 

under its equitable jurisdiction from a Trustee entrusted with the care of the 

property held in trust for the benefit of the cestui que trust.  Defendants’ 

motion with no supporting evidence or even a plausible denial of the facts 

presented in Plaintiff’s Rule 60 motion is itself a pleading filed for the 

improper purpose of intimidation and as such Defendants and their counsel 

should be sanctioned under Rule 11.     

A violation of Rule 11 occurs when a pleading is presented for 
any improper purpose; contains claims or contentions not 
warranted by existing law or by a nonfrivolous argument for 
extension or reversal of existing law; contains allegations or 
factual contentions that lack evidentiary support; or contains 
denials of factual contentions that are not warranted on the 
evidence. Rule 11(b)(1)-(4). See Clark v. UPS, 460 F.3d 1004, 
1008 (8th Cir. 2006), cert. denied, 127 S. Ct. 2043, 167 L. Ed. 
2d 767 (2007). Rule 11(c)(1)(B) provides that, "[o]n its own 
initiative, the court may enter an order describing the specific 
conduct that appears to violate [Rule 11(b)] and directing an 
attorney, law firm, or party to show cause why it has not 
violated" the rule. A sanction imposed under Rule 11 "may 
consist of, or include . . . an order to pay a penalty into court, 
or, if imposed  on motion and warranted for effective 
deterrence, an order directing payment to the movant of some 
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or all of the reasonable attorneys' fees and other expenses 
incurred as a direct result of the violation."  Rule 11(c)(2). 

 
In re Allen, 248 Fed. Appx. 874 (10th Cir. 2007). 

 

The Courts of our Union have the power and obligation to guard and 

enforce every right secured by the Constitution and to issue remedial process 

when it appears one has been deprived of his liberty or property without due 

process of law.  Mooney v. Holohan, 294 U.S. 103, 111 (1935) citing Robb 

v. Connolly, 111 U.S. 624, 637 (1884).  Due process is a requirement that 

cannot be deemed to be satisfied by a mere sham contrived through the 

pretense of a trial.  Such a plot contrived to procure forfeiture of property 

entrusted to the care of a Trustee is “as inconsistent with the rudimentary 

demands of justice as is the obtaining of a like result by intimidation.”  

Mooney, 294 U.S. at 110.   The law has changed and even the Eleventh 

Circuit recognizes that when there is a conflict of interest the standard of 

review is de novo.   Capone v. Aetna Life Insurance Company, 2010 U.S. 

App. LEXIS 91 (11th Cir. January 5, 2010).  Regardless of the political clout 

of the signatories in support of Defendants’ motion the parties are before this 

court under its equitable jurisdiction as equals.3  Id.  Contrary to Defendants’ 

                                                 
3In the above styled action and in the Heptinstall action over the course of 
six years the court has afforded Defendants deference on every issue.  See 
Gilley I and II and Heptinstall.  This court owes no deference to Defendants 
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assertions these claims have not been adjudicated because Defendants and 

their counsel continue to abuse their self-reserved discretion under the false 

pretense this was a discretionary claim to prevent the court from taking 

equitable jurisdiction over the action.4  Id. 

While there must be an end to litigation it is not now when 

Defendants, aided by counsel, have successfully instigated a scheme and 

committed fraud on the court to “take” millions in property entrusted to the 

care of a Trustee.  “But for” Defendants’ fraud on the court and abuse of 

discretion there would have been an adjudication under the court’s equitable 

jurisdiction years ago.  Gilley I at R 101 Vol I at pp. 7-8.  Plaintiff and his 

representative have spent years litigating this action prejudiced by 

Defendants’ misrepresentation and nondisclosure of material facts in the 

interest of parties not before the court.  Doc 211.  Plaintiff’s counsel has 

been subjected to undue hardship and extreme pressure in every conceivable 

way in an effort to ensure Defendants’ success.  What Defendants have done 

is tantamount to theft by deception.  Nothing can make Plaintiff’s 

                                                                                                                                                 
in regards to the dispositions of these motions because of a proven conflict 
of interest.  Capone, 2010 U.S. App. LEXIS 91. 
4Doc 194 (Plaintiff’s individual claim recast as a discretionary claim based 
on fraudulent facts and dismissal of all claims for breach of fiduciary duty 
and violation of ERISA for lack of standing on remand) and Heptinstall Doc 
119 (Dismissal of all claims for failure to state a claim based on the instant 
litigation).   
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representative whole again, but permitting Defendants to continue 

committing acts in furtherance of the fraud they have perpetrated is 

intolerable.  If the courts, historically seen as a refuge and a place of last 

resort for the minority voice, are recast in a bad light by the acts of 

Defendants and their counsel then society as a whole loses.     

WHEREFORE Plaintiff and his representative pray this Court will 

declare the final judgment void and enjoin Defendants from relying on the 

judgment to “take” property from “Old” Monsanto’s former workers.  

Plaintiff and his representative pray this Court takes the opportunity to 

restore the Rule of Law, which defines a civilized society, to a position of 

respect.    

   

Respectfully submitted, 

       /s/ Elisa Smith Rives 
Elisa Smith Rives  

    ASB - 9351-E61R  
Attorney for Wendell F. Gilley 

       Elisa S. Rives, LLC 
P. O. Box 920 
Guntersville, AL 35976 
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 13

CERTIFICATE OF SERVICE 
 
The undersigned hereby certifies that a true and correct copy of the 

foregoing was served by the court’s electronic filing system on the following 
counsel of record, this the 15th day of February, 2010. 

 
BAXLEY, DILLARD, DAUPHIN,   BRYAN CAVE, LLP 
McKNIGHT & BARCLIFT   Jeffrey S. Russell 
Donald R. James     Darci Madden 
Joel E. Dillard     211 N. Broadway 
2008 Third Avenue South    Suite 3600 
Birmingham, AL 35233    St. Louis, MO 63102 
            

 /s/ Elisa Smith Rives   
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